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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK

Introduction

We have audited the financial statements of Afghanistan International Bank (the Bank), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the finandial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Bank as at 31 December 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), the Law of Banking in Afghanistan and other laws and regulations issued by Da
Afghanistan Bank.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Afghanistan and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), the Law of Banking in Afghanistan
and other laws and regulations issued by Da Afghanistan Bank, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process. {‘\‘}N
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Bank’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we S !
identify during the audit. N




AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER, 2022

ASSETS

Cash and balances with Da Afghanistan Bank
Balances with other banks

Placements - net

Investments - net

Loan and advances to customers - net
Operating fixed assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Customers' deposits
Deferred income
Lease liabilities
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

EQUITY

Share capital

Capital reserves

Retained earnings

Revaluation loss on debt instruments at FVOCI
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Contingencies and commitments

17
18

19

2022 2021
---------- AFN in '000 ----------
36,754,123 22,457,198
4,935,205 18,316,295
11,326,593 10,685,045
6,805,988 15,589,938
872,752 1,819,527
2,880,139 3,392,964
457,329 291,697
13,802 267,333
970,597 1,633,211
65,016,527 74,453,208
59,950,045 | [ 70,315,610
24,883 | 29,896
247,634 323,255
1,622,664 205,912
61,245,226 70,874,673
1,465,071 1,465,071
369,069 318,624
2,051,465 1,821,712
(114,303) (26,871)
3,771,302 3,578,536
65,016,527 74,453,208

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

-

Chairman

\Tlef Executive Oﬁ”cer

w\ jﬁﬁ/\%@ 41/(7“**/

Chief Financial Officer




AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2022

2022 2021

Note r-e---r~-: AFN in 000 ~~-rniezn-
Interest income - calculated using the effective interest method 20 [ 389,943 628,848 |
Profit on islamic deposits / Interest experse {3,393)|| (6,389
Net interest income ' 386,550 622,459
Fee and commission income 21 3;204,234 B 942?,527
Fee and commission expense 22 (251,356} (138,037)
Net fee and commission ifcome - 2,952,878 ‘810,250
Income from dealing in forelgn currencies 363,492 373,707

- 3,702,919 1,806,456

Other income - 22,757
Loss / {gain) on sale of securities (268,130) 232,665
Credit losses - net 23 (369,245) (322,233)
Finance cost on lease liability {2,872) {4,404)
General and administrative expénses 24 ( 1,778,378} _ ( 1,635,076).
Profit before taxation 1,284,294 100,165
Taxation 25 _ . (275389) ... 145938
Profit for the year 1,008,905 246,103
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be cdlassified to profit or lass subsequently _ R
Deficit on débt instruments at FVOCI (109,290) (203,114)
Related deferred tax _ 21,858 33,852
Othér comprehensive loss, net of tax - (87,432) (169,262)
Total comprehensive income for the year .. 921,473 .. 76842
Earnings per share - Basic and dituted (AFN) 28 33.63 8.20 .

The annexéd nofes 1 to 38 form an integral part of theése financial statements.

/Chairmah

Chief Financial Officer




AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before Income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Amortization
Finance cost on lease liability
Adjustments for the mevement in lease liability
Credit losses -net

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Required reserve maintained with DAB
Cash margin held with other banks
Loans and advances to customers - net
Other assets
Deferred income
Customers' deposits
Other liabilities

Income tax paid
Net cash flow (used in)/ from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital work-in-progress
Acquisition of operating fixed assets
Acquisition of intangible assets
Placements (with maturity more than three months)
Investments

Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lease liability repaid
Finance cost paid
Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and c¢ash equivalents at 1 January
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 27

2022

--------- AFN in 000 ~-s=munns-
1,284,294 100,165
281,377 281,712
87,503 88,743
2,872 4,404
(47,614) 52,558
369,245 322,233
1,977,677 849,815
(1,513,272) 1,461,082
10,180 20,236
946,775 540,318
666,453 95,526
(148,255) (5,827}
(10,365,565) 8,147,790
816,753 {801,968)
(7,609,253) 10,306,972
(2,648) (19,550)
(7,611,201) 10,287,422
(251,596) (233,427)
(12,573) (10,011)
(30,638) (7,573)
(2,391,334) 6,859,087
8,720,583 1,266,362
6,034,444 7,874,437
(28,008) (55,331)
(2,872) (4,404)
__(728,707) _ _ (240,000)
(759,587)  (299,735)
(2,337,045) 17,862,125
46,827,246 28,965,121
44,490,201 46,827,246

The annéxed notes 1 to 38 form ari integral part of these financial statements,

.

L jf

LA —— M,
? i%f Executive Officer

Ch'i.ef. Financial Officer

&N



AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AS AT 31 DECEMBER, 2022

Bafance at 01 January 2021

Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax;
Debt instruments at FYOCT
Net change in fair value
Related tax

Total comprehensive income.
‘Transferred to capital reserve

Transactions with owners of the bank
Dividend paid

Balance at 31 December 2021

Balance at 01 January 2022

Total comprehensive income

Profit for the year

Cther comprehensive income, net of tax:

Fair value reserve (debt instruments at FVOCt
Net change in fair vajue
Related tax

Total comprehensive income

Transferred to capital reserve
Transactions with owners of the bank

Dividend paid _
Balance at 31 December 2022

Revaluation
oo, loss on debt Capital Retained
Share capitat instruments at  reserves earnings Total
FvocT
an == AFN '000D" -
1,465,071 142,331 306,319 1,827,914 3,741,695
236,103 746,103
(203,114)} {203,114)
33,852 33,852
- (169,267) - 246,103 76,841
12,305 {12,305}
e {240,000) (240,000)
1,465,071 {26,871) 318,624 . 1,821,712 3,578,536
Revaluation
. loss-on debt Capital Retained ,
Share capital instr_uments at reserve earnings Total
FVocC
AFN "000'
1,465,071 {(26,871) 318,624 1,821,712 2,578,536
1,008,905 ][ 1,008,905
(109,290)| (109,290}
_ 21,858 | ) . 21,858 |
= ' (87,432) - 1,008,505 921,473
50,445 {50,445)
- . - L= {728,707 (728,707}
1,465,071 {114,303} . 369,069 ... 2,051,465 3,771,302

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements,

Chairman

",

Chief Financial Officer

o



AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2022

1. Status and nature of business

Afghanistan Internat_iona[ Bank (the Bank) was registered with Afghan Investment Support Agency (AISA)
on 27 December 2003 and received formal commercial banking license on 22 March 2004 from Da
Afghanistan Bank (DAB), the central bank of Afghanistan, to opérate nationwide. The Bank obtained

Islamic banking license from DAB via letter no. 1863/1890 dated 21 July 2014.

The Bank initially was incorporated as a limited liability company and domiciled in Afghanistan, however,
on the basis that the bank capital is divided into shares the status of the bank is changed from limited
liability to Corporation under the Corporations and Limited Liability Companies Law, this status is effective
from 04 May 2016. The principal business place of the Bank is at AIB Head Office, Airport Road, Kabul,
Afghanistan.

The Bank has been operating as one of the leading commercial banking service providers in Afghanistan.
The Bank has 15 branches and 1 cash outlets (2021: 15 branches and 2 cash outlets) in operation.

2. Basis of preparation and measurement

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board, the Law of Banking in
Afghanistan and other laws and regulations issued by Da Afghanistan Bank. Whenever the requirement of
the Law of Banking in Afghanistan differs with the requirements of the IFRS, the requirement of the Law
of Banking in Afghanistan and other laws and regulations issued by Da Afghanistan Bank takes
precedence,

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except investments
are stated at fair value.

These financial statements comprise statement of financial position, statemént of comprehensive income
as a single statement, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and the accompanying
notes.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Bank’s accounting poficies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

2.1. New and amended standards and interpretation

The Bank has not early adopted any new standards, intérpretations or amendments that have been
issued but are not yet effective in these financial statements. Other amendments and interpretations
apply for the first time in 2022, but do not have an impact on the Bank’s financial statements. é\“}T)



AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2022

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted in preparation of this financial statements are consistent with those
followed in the preparation of the annual financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31
December 2022.

3.1 JFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 'Leases’ replaces IAS 17 ‘Leases’ along with three Interpretations (IFRIC 4 ‘Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’, SIC 15 ‘Operating Leases-Incentives’ and SIC 27
“Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’}. The adeption of this
new Standard has resulted in recognition of a right-of-use asset and related lease liability in
connection with all former operating leases except for those identified as low-value or having a
remaining lease term of less than 12 months from the date of initial application.

For contracts in place at the date of initial application, the Bank has élected to apply the definition of
a lease from IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 and has not applied IFRS 16 to arrangements that were previously
not identified as lease under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The Bank has elected not to include initial direct
costs in the measurement of the right-of:use asset for operating leases in existence at the date of
initial application of IFRS 16, being 1 January 2019. At this date, the Bank has also elected to
measure the right-of-use assets at an amount equal to the lease liabitity adjusted for prepaid/
accrued lease payments that existed at the date of transition.

Instead of performing an impairment review on the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application, the Bank has relied on its historic assessment as to whether leases were onerous
immediately before the date of initial application of IFRS 16. On transition, for leases previously
accounted for as operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months and far leases
of low-value assets the Bank has applied the optional exemptions to not recognize right-of- use
assets but to account for the lease expense on a straight-line basis over the remaining lease term.
The Bank did not had any finance lease. On transition to IFRS 16 the weighted average incremental
borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognized under IFRS 16 was 1.9% per annum and as of
31 December 2022, the incemental borrowing rate is 1,02%. The Bank has benefited from the use of
hindsinht far dererminina the lease term when considerina ontians to extend and ferminate leases.
Following accounting poelicy change has been adopted by the Bank pursuant to IFRS 16;

3.2 Leased assats

The Bank as a Lessee

For any new contracts entered into on or after 1 January 2019, the Bank considers whether a
contract Is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys
the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for & period of time in exchange for consideration’. To
apply this definition the Bank assesses whéether the contract meets three key evaluations which are
whether:

a)  The contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract
or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the Bank: 4\?{’



AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2022
b)  The Bank has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset throughout the périod of use, considering its rights within the defined scope
of the contract; and

¢} The Bank has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use.
The Ban assess whether it has the right to direct *how and for what purpose’ the asset is
used throughout the peried of use.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Bank recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the
balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial
measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Bank, an estimate of any
costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in
advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received),

The Bank depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.
The Bank also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist. At the
commencement date, the Bank measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is
readily available or the Bank’s incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments
(including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably cértain to be
exercised.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for
interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-
substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is
reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to
zero, The Bank has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the
practical expedients. Instead of récognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in
relation to these are recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

On the statement of financial position, right-of-use assets have been included in property and
equipment within operating fixed assets and lease liabilities have been disclosed on the face of the
statement of financial position.

Extension options for leases

When the Bank has the option to extend a lease, management uses its judgement to determine
whether or not an option would be reasonably certain to be exercised. Management considers all
facts and circumstances including their past practice and any cost that will be incurred to change the
asset if an option to extend is not taken, to help them determine the lease term. 5\97/



AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2022

3.3 Financial instrumeits -

3.3.1 Financial instruments — initial recognition
3.3.1.1 Date of recognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans and advances to
customers and balances due to customers, are initially recognized on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place. Loans and
advances to customers are recognized when funds are transferred to the
customers’ accounts., The Bank recognize balances due to customers when
funds are transferred to the Bank.

3.3.1.2 Initial measurement of financial instruments

The dassification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their
contractual terms and the business model for managing the instruments.
Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair va'lue, except in the case
of finandial assets and financial liabilities recorded at FVPL, transaction costs are
added to, or subtracted from, this amount. Trade receivables are measured at
the transaction price. When the fair value of financial instruments at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price, the Bank acéounts for the Day 1
profit or loss, as described below,

3:.3.1.3  Day 1 profit or loss

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at
origination and the fair value is based on a vaiuation technique using enly inputs
observable in market transactions, the Bank recognizes the difference between
the transaction price and fair value in net trading income. In those cases where
fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are not observable,
the difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is
only recognized in profit or loss when the inputs become observabie, or when
the instrument is derecognized.

3.3.1.4  Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The Bank classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for
managing the assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

Amortized cost, as explained in note 3.3.2.1 )
FVOCI, as explained in notes 3.3.2.3 and 3.3.2.4 &

FVPL



AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2022
The Bank classifies and measures its trading portfolio at FVPL as explained in
Notes 3.3.2.2. The Bank may designate financial instruments at FVPL, if so
doing eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition
inconsistencies, as explained in Note 3.3.2.6.

Financial liabilities, othér than loan commitments and financial guarantees, are
measured at amortized cost or at FVPL when they are held for trading and
derivative instruments or the fair value designation is applied, as explained in
Note 3.3.2.6.

3.3.2 Financial assets and liabilities

3.3.2.1 Due from banks, Loans and advances to Customers, Financial
investiments at amortized cost

The Bank measures Due from banks, Loans and advances to customers and
other financial investments at amortized cost if both of the following conditions
are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.

The contractual terms of the financiat asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding,

The details of these conditions are outlined below:
Business model assessment

The Bank determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it
manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective.

The Bank's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but at a higher ievel of aggregated porifolios and is based on observable
factors such as:

How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held
within that business model are evaluated and reported to the entity’s key
management personnel,

The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the
financial assets held within that business madel) and, in particular, the way
those risks are managed.

How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether
the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the _
contractual cash flows collected). ‘{_\??
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AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2022 N _ _ _ _
) The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important
aspects of the Bank’s assessment.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios
without taking ‘worst case' or 'stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows
after initial recognition are realized in a way that is different from the Bank's
original expectations, the Bank does not change the classification of the
remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such
Information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial
assets going forward.

The SPPT test

Second step of its classification process the Bank assesses the contractual terms
of financial to identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

*Principal” for the purpese of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial
asset at initial récognition and may change over the life of the financial asset
(for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortization of the
premium/discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are
typically the consideration for the time value of moriey and credit risk. To make
the SPPI assessment, the Bank applies judgment and considers relevant factors
such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period
for which the interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than minimum exposure to
risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic
lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the amount outstanding. In such cases,
the financial asset is required to be measured at FVPL.

3.3.2.2 Financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading N)T .
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AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2022 _ _
The Bank classifies financial assets or financial liabilities as held for trading when
they have been purchased or issued primarily for short=term profit making
through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial instruments that
are managed together, for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-
term profit taking. Held-fortrading assets and liabilities are recorded and
measured in the statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair
value are recognized in net trading income. Interest and dividend income or
expense is recorded in net trading income according to the terms of the
contract, or when the right to payment has been established.

Included in this classification are debt securities, equities, short positions and
customer loans that have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term.

3.3.2.3 Debt instruments at FVOCI

The Bank classifies debt instruments measured at FVOCI when both of the
following conditions are met:

The instrument is held within a business model, the objective of which is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets

The contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test

FYOCI debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising due to changes in fair value recognized in OCI. Interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss in the
same manner as for financial assets measured at amortized cost ag explained in
niote, The ECL calculation for Debt instruments at FYOCI is explained in Note
33.2.3..Where the Bank holds more than one investment in the same security,
they are deemed to be disposed of on a first—in first= out basis. On de
recognition, cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in OCI are
reclassified from OCI to profit or loss.

3.3.2.4 Equity instruments at FYOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Bank oceasionally elects to classify irrevocably some
of its equity investments as equity instruments at FVOCI when they meet the
definition of definition of Equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. Such classification is determined on
an instrument-by- instrument basis. &
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AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2022

3.3.2.5

3.3.2.6

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit.
Dividends are recognized in profit or foss as other eperating income when the
right of the payment has been established, except when the Bank benefits from
such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the instrument, in which case,
such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to
an impairment assessment.

Debt issued and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are
subsequently measured at amortized cost. Amortized cost is calculated hy taking
into account any discount -or premium on issue funds, and costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate (EIR). A compound financial
tnstrument which contains both a liability and an equity component is separated
at the issue date.

Financial asséets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
foss

Financial assets and financia! liabilities in this category are these that are not
held for trading and have beén either designated by management upon initiai
recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured at fair value under IFRS
9. Management only designates an instrument at FVPL upon initial recognition
when ene of the following criteria are met. Such designation is determined on
an instrument-by-instrument basis:

The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or
recognizing gains or losses on them on a.different basis; Or

The liahilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy; Or

The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they
do not significaritly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by
the contract, or it is clear with little or ne analysis when a similar instrument is
first considered that separation of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited. ct\‘>f -
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AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2022

3.3.3

3.3.4

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL are recorded in the statement of
financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and
loss with the exception of movements in fair value of liabilities designated at
FVPL due to changes in the Bank’s own credit risk. Such changes in fair value
are recorded in the Own credit reserve through OCI and do not get recyded to
the profit or loss. Interest earned or incurred on instrurnents designated at FVPL
IS accrued in interest income or interest expense, respectively, using the EIR,
taking into account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs
being an integral part of instrument. Interest earned on assets mandatorily
required to be measured at FVPL is recorded using contractual interest rate as
explained in Note 2.1.2. Dividend ihcome from equity instruments measured at
FVPL is recorded in profit or loss as other operating income when the right to
the payment has been established.

The bank did not have any financial insturments that requires to be classified
under FVPL as at 31 December 2022. ( 31 December 2021: Nil).

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Bank does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart
from the exceptional circumstances in which the Bank acquires, disposes of, or terminates a
business line. Financial liabilitias are never reclassified. The Bank did not reclassify any of its
fihancial assets or liabilities in 2022.

Impairment of financial assets
3.3.4.1 Overview of the ECL principles

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life
of the asset (the lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been
ne significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the
allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss (12mECL) as outlined
in Note 3.3.4.2). The Bank’s policies for determining if theré has been a
significant increase in credit risk are set out in Néte 3.3.5,

The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporting date.

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculatecl_ on either an individual basis or a
collective basis depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial -
instruments. r'\}T
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The Bank has established a policy to perform an assessrnent at the end of each'
reporting period of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of
default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument. This is
further explained in note 29.3.

Based on the above process, the Bank groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2,
Stage 3 and POCI, as described below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognized, the Bank recognizes an allowance
based on 12mECLs.Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has
improved and the loan has beén reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the Bank records an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also
include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been
reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired (as noted below). The bank records
an allowance for the LTECLs,

POCL: Purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) assets are financial assets
that are credit impaired on initial recognition, POCI assets are recorded at fair
value at original recognition and interest income is subsequently recognized
based on a credit- adjusted EIR. ECLs are only recognized or releéased to the
extent that there is a subsequent change in the expected credit losses.

For financial assets for which the Bank has no reasonable expectations of
recovering either the entire outstanding amount, ar a proportion thereof, the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced. This is considered a
(partial} de recognition of the financial asset.

3.3.4.2 The calculation of ECLs

The Bank calculates ECL$ based on a four probability-weighted scenarios to
measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the
EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an
entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects
to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as
follows: ((\_}T""
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s PD The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given
time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed
period, if the facility has not been previously de recognized and is still in the
portfolio. The concept of PDs is further explained in note 29.4.

¢ EAD The Exposure at Défault is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date,
taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date,
including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or
otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued interest
from missed payments. The EAD is further explained in note 29.4.

¢ LGD The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a
default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect tQ receive,
including from the realization of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a
percentage of the EAD. The LGD is further explained in note 29.4.

When estimating the ECLs, the Bank considers three scenarios (a base case, an upside,
downside (‘average base’)). When relevant, the assessment of muttiple scenarios also
incorporates how defaulted loans are expected to be recovered, including the probability
that the loans wilt cure and the value of collateral or the amount that might be received for
selling the asset.

With the exception of credit cards and other revolving facilities, for which the treatment is
separately set out in Note 2.6.5, the maximum period for which the credit losses are
determined is the contractual life of a finandial instrument unless the Bank has the legal
right to call it earlier.

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarized below:

e Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that
result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the
12 months after the reporting date. The Bank calculates the 12mECL allowance
based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12 months following the
reporting date.

These expected 12-month default probabilities are applied to a forecast EAD
and multiplied by the expected LGD and discounted by an approximation to the
original EIR. This calculation is made for each of the four s$cenarios, as _ .
explained above. P
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e Stage 2: When a loan has shown a signifi cant increase in cred:t rxsk since onglnatlon, the
Bank records an allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those
explained above, including the use of multiple scenarios, but PDs and LGDs are
estimated over the lifetime of the instrument. The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted by an approximation to the original EIR.

s Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired (as definéd in note 33.2.2), the Bank
recognizes the lifetime expected credit losses for these loans. The method is
similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

e POCI POCT assets are financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition.
The Bank only recognizes the cumulative changes in lifetime ECLs since initial
recognition, based on a probability-weighting of the four scenarios, discounted
by the credit- adjusted EIR,

Loan commitments and letters of credit

When estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan commitments, the Bank estimates
the expected portion of the foan commitment that will be drawn down oveér its
expected life. The ECL is then based on the present value of the expected
shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down, based on a probability-
weighting of the three scenarios. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted at
an approximation to the expected EIR on the lean. For credit cards and
revolving facilities that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment, ECLs
are calculated and presented together with the loan. For loan commitments and
letters of credit, the ECL is recognized within provisions, as disclosed in note 23
to the financial statements.

Financial guarantee contracts

The Bank estimates ECLs based on the present value of the expected payments
to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs. The shortfalls are
discounted by the risk-adjusted interest rate relevant to the exposure. The
calculation is made using a probability-weighting of the three scenarios. The
ECLs related to financial guarantee contracts are recognized within provisions,
as disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements. Nbf
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" 3.34.3  Debt instruments measured at fair value through OCT

The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FVOCI do not reduce the carrying
amount of these financial assets in the statement of financial position, which
remains at fair value. Instéad, an amount equal to the allowance that would
arise if the assets were measured at amortized cost is recognized in QCI as an
accumulated impairment amount, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss.
The accumulated loss recegnized in OCI is recycled to the profit and loss upon
de recognition of the assets.

3.3.44  Credit cards and other revolving faciiities

The Bank’s product offering includes a variety of corporate and retail overdraft
and credit cards facilities, in which the Bank has the right to cancel and/or
reduce the facilities with one day’s notice. The Bank does not limit its exposure
to credit losses to the contractual notice period, but, instead calculates FCL over
a period that reflects the Bank's expectations of the customer behavior, its
likelthood of default and the Bank's future risk mitigation procedures, which
could inctude redticing or cancelling the facilities. Based on past experiénce and
the Bank’s expectations, the period over which thie Bank calculates FCLs for
these products, is one year for corporate and 3 years for retail products.

The ongoing assessment of whether a significant increase in credit risk has
occurred for revolving facilities is similar to other lending products. This is based
on shifts in the customer’s internal credit grade, as explained in Note 29.4 but
greater emphasis is also given to qualitative factors such as ¢hanges in usage.

The interest rate used to discount the ECLs for credit cards is based on the
average effective interest rate that is expected to be charged over the expected
period of exposure to the facilities. This estimation takes into account that many
facilities are repaid in full each month and are consequently charged no interest,

The caleulation of ECLs, including the estimation of the expected period of
exposure and discount rate is made, on an individual basis for corporate and on
a collective basis for retail products. The collective assessments are made _
separately for portfolios of facilities with similar credit risk characteristics. (;\Q«( ’
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3.3.5

3.3.4.5  Forward looking information

In its ECL models, the Bank relies on a broad range of forward looking
information as economic inouts. such as:

GDP growth
Unemployment rates
Consumer price indices

Impairment provision under local regulations

lLoans and advances to customers
The outstanding principal of the advances are classified in accordance with the Asset
Classification and Provisioning Regulation issued by DAB as follows:

i) Standard: These are loans and advances, which are paying in a current
manner or at most past due for the period of 1-30 days, fully secured and is
supported by sound net worth, profitability, liquidity and cash flow of the
obligor. Standard assets are sufficiently secured with respect to the repayment
of both the principal amount and interest, An overdraft would be regarded as
Standard if monthly interést payments and otfier charges are past due for 1- 30
days, and there was regular activity on the account with no sign of a hard core
of debt developing. A standard provision is maintained in the books of account
@1% (31 December 2021: 1%) of value of such loans and advances.

ir} Watch: These are loans and advances which are adequately protected, but are
potentially weak. Such an asset constitutes an unwarranted credit risk, but not
to the point of requiring a classification of Substandard. The credit risk may be
minor, and most instances, bank management can correct the noted deficiencies
with increased attention. Further, all loans and advances which are past due by
31 to 60 days for principal or interest payments are classified as Watch. A
provision is maintained in the books of accourit not less than 5% of value of
such loans and advances.

iii) Substandard: These are loans and advances which show clear manifestations
of credit weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. Substandard
loans and advances include loans to borrowers whose cash flows are not
sufficient to meet currently maturing debts, loans to borrowers which are
significantly undercapitalized, and loans to borrowers lacking sufficient working )
capital to meet their operating needs. &\}{
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- Further, all loans and advences which are past due by 61 to 120 days for
principal or interest payments are also classified as Substandard. A provision is

maintained in the books of account not less than 25% of value of such loans
and advances,

iv) Doubtful: These are loans and advances which display all the weaknesses
inherent in loans and advances classified as Substandard but with the added
characteristics that they are not well secured and the weaknesses make
colflection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently available information,
highly questionable and improbable. The possibility of loss is extremely high,
but because of certain mitigating circumstances, which may work to the
advantage and strengthening of the facility, its classification as an estimated
loss is postponed until its more defined status is ascertained. Further all loans
and advances which are past due by 121 to 480 days for principal or interest
payments are also classified as Doubtful. A provision is maintained in the books
of account not less than 50% of value of such loans and advances.

v) Loss: These are loans and advances which are considered uncollectible and of
such little value that their continuation as recoverable facilities is not defensible.
This classification does not imply that the facility has absolutely no recoverable
value, but rather it is not practical or desirable to defer making full provisions
for the facility even though partial recover in future may not be entirely ruled
aut. Loans and advances classified as Loss include those to bankrupt companies
and insolvent firms with negative working capital and cash flow or those to
judgment debtors with no means or foreclosable collateral to settle the debts.
Further, all loans and advances which are past due over 481 days for principal
and interest payments are classified as Loss. This category of loans shall be
retained in bank balance sheet for the period of 6 month for recovery purposes
and 100% loan loss provisioning should be made. After 6 months, they shail be
immediately written off with the provisioning made.

The bank has also determine provision for expected credit losses under IFRS 9
which results higher than provision undei Asset Classification Provisioning
Regulation, accordingly higher provisions were in cooperated in the financial )
statements as disclosed in note 9.4 to the financial statements. Y
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Investments, placemeits and other assets

The bank has policy of maintaining general provision on placements and
investments based on the credit rating, falling in category A (0%), B (0.50%)
and C (1%), entity also determine provision for expected credit losses under
IFRS 9, the financial statements are in cooperated with higher provision impact
resulting from the mentioned methods, as disclosed in notes 7.3 & 8.3 to the
financial statements.

Off-balance sheet item

General provision of 1% is maintained on bank guarantees and letter of credits
on unsecured portion by cash margin as required in Asset Classification and
Provisioning Regulation issued by DAB, however, entity also determine provision
for expected credit losses on off-balance sheet items under IFRS 9, the financial
statements are in cooperated with higher provision impact resulting from the
mentioned methods, as disclosed in noté 23 to the financial statements.

3.4 Financial liabilities
The Bank classifies its financial liabilities in following categories.
a) Financial liabiiities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial liabilities held for trading.
A financial liability is classified in this category if incurred principally for the purpose of
trading or payment in the short term. Derivatives (if ary) are also categorized as held for
trading untess they are designated as hedges.

b) Other financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

These are non-derivatives financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market, Theése are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred: and are subsequently stated at amortized cost; any differences between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized in the income
statement.

3.5 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Bank has access at the date. The fair value of a
liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take
place with sufficient frequency and volurme to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

N
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If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Bank uses valuation techniques that
maximizes the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable ali of the
factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the
transaction price - i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Bank determines
that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is
evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an idéntical asset or liability nor based on
a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, the financial instrument is initially
measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition
and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in profit and loss in an
appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when valuation is wholly supported
by observable market data or transaction is closed out.,

If an asset or a fability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Bank
measures assets and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short position at an ask price.

Portfolio of financial assets and financial liabilities that are exposed to market risk and credit risk that
are managed by the Bank on the basis of the net exposure to either market risk or credit risk or
measured on the basis of a price that would be received to sell a net long position (or paid to transfer
a net short position) for a particular risk exposure. Those portfolio-level adjustments are allocated to
the individual assets and liabifities on the basis of the relative risk adjustment of each of the individual
instruments in the portfolio.

The Bank recognizes transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

3.6 Operating fixed assets

These are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any, except for
land and capital work in progress which is stated at cost less impairment, if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acqjuisition of the asset.

Subsequent cost are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
approptiate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are recognized in statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the depreciable amount of the
assets over thelr estimated useful life as follows:

Building 20 years

Right of Use Assets 1 to B years

Computers J to 5 vears )
Other office machine: 3 to 5 years )](
Furniture and fittings 3 to 10 years &

Vehicles 5 years
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Depreciation is charged on additions duting the year from the month they.becmﬁ.é'évéiléble for their
intended use while no. depreciation is charged in the month of disposal of assets, The useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each statement of finangial position
date, '

Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with -
the carrying amount. These are included in other income in the statement of comprehensive income.

3.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are capitalized only to the extent that the future economic benefits can be derived
by the Bank having useful life of more than one year. Intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortization. Amortization is charged to income applying the straight line method.

i) Core banking Deposits

The core banking deposits is capitalized resulting from the acquisition of deposit base of
Standard Chartered Bank (SCB) Afghanistan opérations during 2012 which is amortized over
the useful life of 15 years.

i) Computer software

Acquired computer software is capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortized over their estimated useful life
of 3 to 10 years.

in License fee

Acquired trademarks and licenses are initially recognized at historical cost and subsequently
recognized at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of the licenses over their estimated useful life.

The useful lives of intangibles are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at éach statement
of financial position date.

3.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-fihancial assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested
annually for impairment. Non-financial assets that are subject to depreciation/ amortization are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recovérable. An impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss is recognized in
the statement of comprehensive income. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). J\ﬁr‘
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Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date. Reversal of the Impairment losses is restricted to the
original cost of the assets.

3.9 Taxation
Current

The current income tax charge is calculated in accordance with Income Tax Law, 2009. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to Situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis. of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
lizbilities in the financial statements and the corrésponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differerices to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary
difference arises from gooedwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

3.10 Revenue recognition

a) Interest income and expenses for all interest-bearing financial instruments, except for those
classified as held for trading or designated at fair value through profit or oss, are recognized
within “interest income’ and interest expense' in the statement of comprehensive income
using the effective interest rate method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payménts or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider future
credit losses.

b) Due but unpaid interest income is accrued on overdue advances for periods up to 90 days in
compliance with the Banking regulations issued by _D-AB. After 90 days, overdue advances
are classified as non-performing and further accrual of unpaid interest income ceases.

c) Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are recognized in the period in | .
which disposal is made. t‘\“)i(
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d) Fees and commission income and expense are recognized on an accrual basis when the
service has been provided/received,

e) Fee and commission income that are integral part to the effective interest rate on financial
assets and liability are included in the measurement of effective interest rate. Other fee and
commission expenses related mainly to the transactions are services fee, which are
expensed as the services are received.

3.11 Foreign currency transactions and translation
a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Bank are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency),
which is Afghani (AFN). All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousands, except
when otherwise indicated,

3.12 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rate
prevailing at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated using
the exchange rate at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at period-end exchange rates of assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in income currently.

The exchange rate for following currencies against AFN were:

1 USD 1 Euro
As at 31 December 2022 89.21 94.46
As at 31 December 2021 103.73 113.36

3.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there are present, legal or constructive obligations as a result of past
events; it is probable that an out flow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate of the amounts can be made. Provision for guarantee
claims and other off balance sheet obligations is recognized when intimated and reasonable certainty
exists to settle the obligations.

3.14 Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial

statements when there is a legally enforceabie right to offset the recognized amounts and the Bank
intends to settle either on a net basis or realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. N}{
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3.15 Dividend Distribution

Final dividend distributions to the bank’s shareholders are recognized as a liability in the financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Bank’s shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting while interim dividend are recognized in the period in which the dividends are
declared bv the Board of Supervisors.

3.16 Earnings per share

The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss that is attributable to shareholders of the Bank by the
weighted- average number of shares outstanding during the year.

3.17 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is
provided and recognized as personnel expenses (salaries and benefits) in profit or i6ss. Prepaid
contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future
payments is available,

Short-term benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is nrovided.

3.18 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with
less than three manths maturity including cash in hand and at ATM, unrestricted balances with the
DAB, balances with bainks and placemeénts,

4. Use of critical accountirnig estimates and judgments

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial yéar. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of futuré evénts that are believed to be reasonabie
under the circumstances. The resulting accounting estimates and judgments will, by definition, rarely
equal the related actual results. The material estimates, assumptions and judgments used to measure
and dlassify the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are outiined below:

a) Impairment losses on financial assets

The banks accounting framework considers both the provision prescribed under local regulations in
Afghanistan and IFRS 9. Therefore, the Bank's level of provision for impairment against financial asset
considers the requirements of both regimes. {:\Q*/
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The measurement of impairment losses under IFRS 9 across all categories of financial assets requires
judgment, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral
values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk.
These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
aliowances.

The Bank’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions
regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependenciés. Elements of the ECL models that
are considered accounting judgments and estimates include:

* The Bank's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so
allowances for financial assets should be measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment;

* The Bank’s internal credit grading model
* The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis

* Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs to such models.

* Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, econemic inputs, such as GDP
growth

* Selection of forward-locking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the
economic inputs into the ECL. models

It has been the Bank’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience
and adiust when necessarv,

The Bank reviews loans to customer balances quarterly for possible impairment and records the
provision for possible loan losses as per the Bank's policy and in accordance with DAB regulations.

h) Provision of income taxes

The Bank recognizes tax liability in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Law 2009. The final
tax liability is dependent on assessment by Ministry of Finance, Govérnment of Islamic Republic of
Afghanistan.

c) Useful life of property and equipment and intangible assets

The Bank reviews the usefud life, depreciation method and residual value of property and equipment
and intangible assets at each statement of financial position date. Any change in estimates may affect
the carrying amounts of the respective items of property and equipment and intangible assets with a ‘
corresponding effect on the depreciation / amertization charge. ‘(\‘)7
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5

5.1

5.2

6.1

7.1

7.2

2022 _ -'2{521

Cash and balances with Da Afghanistan Bani Mote —smmenecs AFN in '000 <rmmmsea-
Cash in hand 51 29,327,890 9,676,731
Cash in hand - Islamic banking division 167,777 44,789
Cash at Automated Teller Machinas (ATMs) . 46,392 _ 53,134
29,542,059 9,774,654
Balances with Da Afghanistan Bank:

Local currency: ' . )
- Reguired reserve aceounts 5.2 648,080 228,649
- Current accounts 245,438 1,315,010
894,418 1,543,650
Foreign currency: . .
- Reguired reserve accounts 5.2 5,471,197 4,378,265
- Current accounts 846,449 6,760,629
6,317,646 11,138,894

36,754,123 _ 22,457,198

Cash in hand includes local currency amount of AFN 6,708,443 thousands and fareign currency amount of AFN
22,619,447 thousands: '_(_31 December 2021: local currency amoaunt of AFN 1,069,881 thousands and foreign currency
amount of AFN 8,606,851 thousands).

Required reserves are maintained with DAB, denominated ia respective currencies, to meet minimum reserve
requirement in accordance with Article 3 “Required Reserves Regulation” of the Banking Regulations issued by DAB,

2022 2021, .
Balances with other banks Note remwsne——— AFN i "O00 —<ssnmnmas
Crown agents bank 6.1 2,930,375 13,482,891
With other banks 2,004,830 4833404,

4,935,205 1B,316,295

The balances with crown -agents bank consist of overnight placements cairying Interest rate 3.50% per annum (31
December 2021: 8.05% per annum).

2022 o 2021
Placements - net Note memnmeane AFN N 000 =nnmcnsomm
Placements with banks 7.1 11,344,435 10,685,546
Impaitment allowances for losses 7.2 _ (17,842) . (501)
e . 11,326,593 10,685,045

These represent USD denominated fixed term placemerits with financial Institutions outside Afghanistan up to a
maximum period of 180 days (2021: one year} and carry interest at rates randing from 2.50% to 4.70% {31 December
2021: 0.12% to 1.60%) per annum.

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk for categories based on the Bank's
¢credit rating grades and year-end stage classification as at 31 December 2022 and 2021, respectivély, The amounts

presented are gross of impairment allowances. Details of the Bank’s rating grades are explained in note 29.7. {N?T g
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31 D_e_cember,_ 2022

31

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 _ ST
Collective Collective Collective Total De;%rg]l:-ner,
AFN'000'  AFN'000'  AFN'000°  AFN ‘000° AFN '000°
Rating
Performing
Investment Grade 9,560,235 1,784,200 - 11,344,435 10,685,546
Non-Investment Grade - - . e -
Total 9,560,235 1,784,200 - 11,344,435 10,685,546
Proviston for expected
credit losses - (note 7.2.1) (192) (905} - {(1,097) (501)
Provision for impairment losses
as per ACPR - {note 7.2.1) = _ (16-,745_)_ . - {16,745) -
Total {192) (17,650) - (17,842) (501)
Net balance _ 5,560,043 __ 1,766,550 - 11,526,503 _ 10,685,005
7.2.1 The provision for expected credit losses on placements as per IFRS ¢ amounted to AFN 1,097 theusands (31 December

2021: AFN 501 thousands) which is lower from the one resulting from Assets Classification and Provisioning Reguiation
requirements (ACPR). Accordingly, the Bank has maintained higher provision as required uiider ACPR,

2022 2021

8 Investments - net Note mumusniee AEN N YO0 —=-smmminn
Debt instruments at fair value through OCI:

- Investment bonds 8.1 2,107,340 6,345,755
Debt instruments at amortized cost;

- Investment bonds 8.2 4,711,659 9,260, 967

6,818,999 15,615,722

Allowance for ECL / impairment losses 8.3 _ {13,011) _{25,784)

6,805,988 15,589,938

8.1 These represent investments in sovereign bonds having maturity ranging from April 2023 to October 2029 (31
December 2021: January 2022 to July 2040) and carrying interest rates ranging from 1.65% to 6.00% (31 December
2021: 0,10% to 7.90%) per annum. These investments are managed by Credit Suisse and Emirates NBD on behalf of
the Bank.

8.2 These represent investiments in sovereign bonds carrying interest rates ranging from 1.00% to 4.88% (31 December
2021: 1.00% to 6.60%) per annum. These investrnents have maturity ranging from January 2023 to Qctober 2030 (31
December 2021: January 2022 te October 2030). These investments are managed by Julius Baer and Emirates NBD on
behalf of the Bank.

8.3 Impairment allowance for invéstments

The table below shows. the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk for categories based on the Bank's
credit rating grades and year-énd stage classification as at 31 December 2022 and 2021, respectively. The amounts
presented are gross of impairment allowances. Detalls of the Bank's rating grades are explained in note 29.4 A
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31 December, 2022

Stage 1 Stage2 = Stage 3 ' ' 31
_ Total December,
Coliective . Collective . Collective 2021
Rating - o - AEN ‘000" ——- S
Performing
Investment Grade 5,866,934 - - 5,866,934 14,573,726
Non-Investment Grade - 625,989 462,238 _ 1,088,227 . 1,068,867
5,866,934 625,989 462,238 6,955,161 15,642,593
Provision for expected
credit losses - (14,932) - (14,932) (25,784)
Provision for Impairment losses (13;011) -
as per ACPR - . - - 1,521 o
- {27,943y - - {13,011) (25,784)
Mark to market (132,658) (3,504) - (136,162) (26,871)
adjustiment on debt
instruments af fair value . . . . .
5,734,276 504,542 462,238 6,805,988 15,589,939

The provision for expected credit losses on investments as per IFRS 9 amount to AFN 14,129 thousands (31
December 2021: AFN 25,784 thousands) which is higher than the Asset Classification and Pravisioning Regulation
(ACPR). Accordingly, the Bank has maintained higher provision as required as per IFRS 9.

2022 2021

9 Loan and advances to customers - net Note mmmmmne—e AFN N "000 —r-rmmaen
Overdrafts 9.1 972,007 || 2,231,308

Term loans 9.2 266,887 724,915
Consumer leans 9.3 . 17,653 ) ... 29,184
1,256,567 2,985,467

General provision 5.4 (333,148) (155,59%)
Allowance for ECL / impairment losses 9.5 (50,667) {1,010,285)

872,753 1,819,577

Particulars of loans and advances - {gross)

Short term (for up to one year) 1,243,336 2,665,582
Non-current (for over ane year) __ 13,231 319,381
1,256,567 2,985,363 -
e f‘\QT
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2.1

5.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

31 December, 2022 N 31
= s — ™ December,
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 2021
— T S - AEN 000" T —
'Gross loan portfolic
Internal Rating Grade
High Grade 7,387 - - 7,387 36,087
Standard Grade 492,423 107,716 - 600,139|| 765,342
Sub Standard Grade 68,926 334,742 20,617 424,285{ 1,146,975
Non-performing - L. 2144331 10,324 . .224,756(( 1,037,004
Total 868,737 656,890 30,941 1,256,567 2,985,408
Allowance for ECL / impairment losses L L N e i
Opeiting balance T 14,099 " 30,290 965,896 1,010,285|[ 689,447
Charge for the year = _ - 43,152 43,152} 310,317
Written off during the year - - (983,89-1). (983,8_9-:_[_._) ' (1,096)
Exchange rate differences - . .. {18,879)[[  (18879)| 11,617
Provisien held 14,099 30,290 6,278 50,667 1,010,285
. 554638 = 626,600 24,663 1,205,900 1,975,123

These represent l:_:a!ances due fram customers at varibus interest rates ranging from 5.00% to 12% per annum (31
December 2021: 7.00% 10 14.50%) per annum and are secured against mortgage of properties, persenal guarantees

and pledge of stocks. These include leans and advances te Small Medium Size Enterprises (SMEs) amounting to 89,175
thousands {31 Décernber 2021: AFN 140,454 thousands).

Term loans carry interést at various rates ranging from 5.50% to 18.00% p.a. (31 December 2021; 5,50% to 18.00%
p.a.) and are secured against mortgage of properties, persenal guarantees, lien on equipment, pledge of stocks andfer
assignment of receivables of the borrowers. These include loans and advances to SMEs inciuding Isfamic Murabaha

financing amounting to (Nil ) and conventional amounting to AFN 41,383 thousands (31 December 2021: islamic

Murabaha financing améunting to in AFN 35,689 thousands and conventicnal amounting in AFN 141,207 théusands)
which are alse partially backed by Afghanistan Credit Guarantee Foundation {ACGF) guarantees to the extent defined in
agreement with ACGF.

These inciude payroll loans provided to individuat payrol! account holders and employees of corporate. customers having
payroll account with the Bank carrying interest rate of 18% to 22% (31 December 2021: 18% to 22%) p.a., i6ans
provided te university arid school teachérs cdrrying interest rate of 13% to 15% (31 Decembier 2021: 13% to 15%) and
eredit card loans carrying interest of 36% (31 Decermnber 2021: 36%) on annual basis on cutstanding batances.

This represents US $3.73 mn additional general provision maintained by the bank, out this, US $2ma is duly appreved
by DAB to be part of tier 2 capital to cover any future unexpected losses.

Allowance for ECL / Impairment allowance for loans and advances to customers

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk for categories based on the Bank’s
credit rating grades and year-end stage classification as at 31 December 2022 and 202 1, respectively. The amounts
presented are gross of iivipairment allowancés. Details of the Bank's rating grades are explained in note 29.4

ot

-
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10

10.1

The Bank has filed suits for the recovery of loans and advances {principal due) against the defaulted horrowers
amounting to AFN 268,337 thousands {31 December 2021: AFN 1,072,403 thousands) as at the year end. These suits
are pending. decisions at various courts. The Bank's management is of the view that the aforementioned suits will be
decided in its favor due to sound legal foatings.

IFRS 9 expected credit loss amounts to AFN 25,162 thousands as at 31 December 2022. The provision as per ACPR
amounts to AFN 197,880 thousand (General provision: AFN 8,854 thousands and Specific provision: AFN 189,026
thousands) made under Assets Classification and Provistaning Regulation (ACPR) is higher than IFRS 9 ECL, therefore,
the Bank has maintained the higher provision under the requireménts of ACPR,

L2022 . 2021
Note el 1 ) 1 I 1) [——
Operating fixed assets
Capital work-in-progress. 10.1 7,204 169,043
Property and equipment 10.2 . 2,872,035 3,223,921

2,880,139 3,392,964

Capital work-in-progress

Advances to suppliers and contractors 7,204 . 169,043
7,204 169,043
Movement in capital work in progress o o o
Opening balance 169,043 48,078
Additions during the year 89,757 138,424
Transferred to operating fixed assets (5,668) (8,915)
Transferred to intangible assets ( 2_45,928) { 8,544
Closing balance _ _7,204 169_,_043

«‘\'}‘{
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2022 2021

11 Intangible assets fmm ===~ AFN in '000 -~----crm-

Computer software, licenses and core banking deposit __457,329 _ 291,657
Computer Core Banking
software  License fee  Deposits Total
o e AFN 000 o e
Cost
Balance at 01 January 2021 476,422 90,765 542,677 1,108,864
Transfers from CWIP 8,544 - - 8,544
Additions . 1,573 o o 7,573
Balance at 31 December 2021 ..492,535. 90,765 542,677 1,125,981
Balance at 01 January 2022 492_,539 90,765 542,677 1,125,981
Transfers from CWIP 195,783 50,145 - 245,928
Additions 24,382 6,255 - 30,638
Wite offs (note 11.1) (443,570) __ (53,968) _ - _(497,538)
Balance at 31 December 2022 269,134 93,197 _ _5.42_,_677'__ 905,009
Amottization _
Balance at 01 January 2021 356,518 87,385 301,638 745,541
Charge for the year 51,835 7t . 36197 . _88,743
Balance at 31 December 2021 408,353 88,096 337,835 834,284
Balance at 01 January 2022 408,353 88,096 337,835 834,284
Charge for the year 119,533 31,773 36,197 87,503
Write offs {note 11.1) (388,031) (86,076) ot .. (474,107)
Balance at 31 Decémber 2022 39,855 33,793 374,03-2 _ 447,680
Carrying amounts . N R E—
Balance at 31 December 2021 84,186 . 2,663 204,842 291,69?
Balance at 31 December 2022 229,279 59,.4(?.-’}.... 168,645 _ 457,329
3to 10
i i ars
Useful life years 3 to 10 years 5 year

11.1

During the year bank has written off all the intangible assets that were fully amortized as of 31

December 2022.

R
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13

14

14.1

14.2

15

151

16

2022 2021
Other assets Note  -meeeeeo AFN in "800 -c-mmuee--
Advances to employees i 43,978 63,357
Security depesits 9,386 1,444
Advances and prepaymests : 285,322 202,380
Interest récelvable 115,771 207,087
Advance income tax - net 43,212 40,564
Receivable from. credit card service company - CSC 251,378 1,074,826}
Other receivable and advances .222.367)/. 45,561]
971,415 1,635219
Allowance for ECL / impairment Insses ) {(B18). . .. . (2.008)
970,597 _ . 1633211
2022 2021
=ommveeen- AFN D ‘000 -=rrevena-
Customers' deposits
Current deposits 57,393,332 67,308,118
Saving deposits 99,222 132,100
Islamic deposits 14.1 1,433,864 1,686,969
Cash margin held against bank guarantees and letters of credit 14,2 _ 1,023,627 1,188,414

.. 59,950,045 70,315,610

Islamic deposits can be further analyzed as foliows:

Current deposits . 415,227 193,892
Saving. deposits 1,018,637 1,482,041
Term depostts ~ 11,036

1,433,864 . 1686960

This represents cash margin held on the bank gurantees and letter of credlt issued by the bank ranging 100% to
110%.

2022 2021

Note  -emewescss AFN in '000 ~oscenmmev
Lease liabilities
Cpening balance . 323,255 469,641
Additiéns during the year - -
Derecognized during the year - (143,612)
L ease rentals paid {30,879) (59,736)
Finance cost for the year 2,872 4,404
Exchange {gain)/ loss __{47624) = 52558

15.1 247,634 . 323,255

Lease liabilities represerit the amounts. payable relating to the right-of-use assets recognized on account of branches
under operating leases. The maturity analysis Of lease liabilities dre presented in note 32,

2022 2021

MNote  --<------ AFN in '000 ---:52o---

Other liabilities
Accruals and other payables 24,230 7,699
Pending- outward refittanéés 16.1 498,376 5,738
Provision for salaries and allowances 122,772 33,743
Witholding taxes payable to MoF 16.2 84,861 3,796
Payable fo customeérs 16,3 25,733 43,512
Others 16.4 84,480 72,453
Provision on financial guarantees 165 182,213 38971
1,022 665 205,912

n\‘})( ’
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16.1 This includes pending cutward remittances of the customers amounting t¢ AFN 491,371 thousands, which
' subsequently were cleared on 30 January 2023 (31 December 2021: Nil}.

16.2 This represents withholding taxes on interim dividend payment to the shareholders, which subsequently was cleared
' on 03 January 2023.

16.3  This represents amount payables to the customers as a result of their account closure due to compliance issues.

16.4 This mainly includes charges on outgoing remittances payable to the correspondent banks and payabies to CSC
- regarding electronic banking services.

16.5  This represents provision ranging from 1% to 50%on unsecured portion of bank guarantees, not backed by cash
margin. (31 December 2021: 1%)

2022 2021
i7 Sharecapital e AFN in "000 -~rmau-mz-
Autharized 30,000,000 (2021: 30,000,000) ordinary shares of USD 1 each 1,465,071 1,465,071
Issued, subscribed and paig-up - 30,000,000 (31 December 2021: 30,000,000)
ordinary shares of AFN 48.84 each fully paid in cash 1,465,071 1,465,071

17.1  Pursuant to letter no,918/703 dated 17 May 2010 issued by Da Afghanistan Bank (DAB), the Bank complies with the
minimum paid-up capital requirement for commercial banks in Afghanistan amounting to AFN 1 billion or US $ 20
million.

17.2  Horizon Associates LLC and Wilton Helding Limited each holds 46.25% of Issued, subscribed and paid up capitai
while remaining 7.5% is held by International Finance Corporation which is same as per previous year.

17.3  During the year, the Bank has paid cash dividend of AFN 24.29 per share (31 December 2021; AFN 8.00 per sharg)
amounting to AFN 728.707 inffiion (31 December 2021: AFN 240 millign},

17.4  Bank is propesing a final dividend of AFN 900 million from the current year profits. This is subject to Audit
committee, Board of Supervisors and DAB's approval.

18 Capital reserves

Article 93 Reserve Capital of Corperations and Limited Liability Companies Law of Afghanistan, requires that Bank
should transfer 5% of its profit te Capital Reserve to compensate for future possible losses to the extent such capital
reserves reach up to 25%. of the Bank's capital. The Bank's capital resérves as at 3t December 2022 stood at AFN
371,371 thousands {31 December 2021: AFN 318,644 thousands).

2022 2021
Mote  ---—--—--= AFN in ‘00D «=-evevanu-
19 Contingencies and commitments
Contingencies
Financial guarantees 19.1 . 2,666,853 8,354[500

19.1  These represent bid bonds and performance guarantees issued by the Bank in the normal course of business. These
are 100% to 110% secured against the cash margin a#id caunter guarantees.

19.2 The Bank i5 also facing certain litigations en which no provisien is reguired as per the opitiion of legat advisor,

Commitments

{a} Undrawn loan and overdraft facilities 338,335 942,955
{b) Commerciat letters of credit 44,605 _._..h53918

382,940 1496873
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20 Interest income - calculated using the effective interest method Note

Interest income an overnight deposits

Placements
Debt instruments at FYOCT

Debt Instruments at amortized cost
toans and advances to customears

This represents interest income from overnight deposits with crown agents bank at the intérest rate of 3.50% per annum (31
20,1 ' ) R
December 2021: 0.05% per anoum).

21 Fee and commission income

Loans and advances to customers

Trade finance products

Income from domestics/international inward/outward remittances

Income from cheque withdrawal charges

Customers' account service charges

Income from electronic banking

Income from guarantee arrangements

Income from payroll disbursement services
Physical cash management incoime
Income from pay on ID's servicés

Others

22 Fee and commission expense

Guarantee / letter of credit cormmilssion

Bank charges on nostro accounts
Money service providers charges
Asset management fee to investment advisars
Expensas from electronic banking

23 Credit losses (reversal} / expanse

2022 _ 2021
mesmiezane AFN i '000 -<-terae-
36,852 21,556
74,849 102,202
77,211 173,256
83,418 141,591
117,613 190,243
389,943 628,848,

2022 2021
[ 151 R —— AFN in '000 =~
10,896 10,489
4,237 12,825
885,475 381,285
58,705 21,522
76,275 162,374
123,614 137,038
58,924 68,245
52,862 48,218
1,708,438 135,462
221,074 21,626
3,734 . ..9235
3,204,234 048,327
2022 .2021
Note e ——— AFN in'DUO PP
- 943
13,946 6,767
41,266 1,661
95,724 57,196
95,720 71,470
251,356 138,037
The table below shows the ECL charges on financial instruments for the year recorded in the income statement:
31 December, 2022
i T
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 L
Collottive  Coflactive cbn'egctivg Regulatory Total D‘*;‘:}';'l"’"
Note  AFN'000' AFN'ODD'  AFN 'O00' AFN-'0C0' AEN '00D"
Placemants 7.2 308 (905) - 17,341 17,341 (6,824)
Investments 83 - 10,852 - 13,011 (10,852) 7.556
Loans and advances 8.5 - - - 43,152 43,152 308,899
General Provision 94 - - - 177,553 177,553 1,395
Other assets 13 - - - {1,191) (1,191) 1,(_3?6
Financial guarantees 16.5 1,438 141,804 - (15,487) 143,242 10,218
Letter of credit 165 ~ - - . - {687)
Total impairment loss for R N
the year 1,747 151,751 - .. 234,379 369,5;&__‘?#

39093,y
8 é\‘?\'[
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24

24.1

24.2

24.3

25

General and administrative expenses

Salaries, bonus & other benefits
Rental, rates and taxes

Electricity, generator and fuel
Repairs and maintenance

Head office buiiding support services
Informatien technology cost
Security cost

Depreciation

Amartization

Dlrectors fee and their meeting expenses
Travelling and accommodatfon
Communication, swift and internet
Stationery and printing

leoal and professional charges
Auditors' remuneration

Marketing and promotion
Insurance

Subscriptions and memberships
Other expenses

Taxes and penalties

Corporate socfal responsibility

2022 ' 2021

Note mmnamum—ei KFN i 000 ~emonmmm i
524,834 493,425
24.1 15,828 55,259
119,009 76,383
242 61,494 26,725
38,517 32,922
139,101 147,884
44,567 74,603
10.2 281,377 281,712
11 87,503 88,743
28,664 25,593
21,695 25,776
35,112 43,335
25,833 33,257
24.3 143,493 85,697
9,776 9,313
6,447 9,249
159,003 142,391
5,432 983
14,952 15,442
3,564 1,05%
12,167 .. 4,320
' 1,778,378 1635076

This Includes expense related to short term lease (less than 12 months) which have not been accounted for in the lease model of

IFRS 16 and recognized in expense on stralght line basis.

This includes head office building repairs and malntance cost amounting to AFN 35,306 thousands (31 December 2021: Nil).

This includes tegal charges amounting to- AFN 37,263 thousands (31 December 2021: AFN 16,636 thousands) and professional fee

amounting AFN 75,300 thousands (31 December 2021: AFN 99,017 thousands).

Taxation

Current:
For the year
Prior periods

Deferred:
For the year

2022 2021
Note mrmsssemsue ARN in 1000 wrwumaasn

25.1 - .
2.1 275,389 (145,934}
275,389 {145,938)

25.1  Owing to carry forward tax losses, no provision for taxation has been made during the period.

25.2 Relationship between tax expénse and accounting profit

Accounting profit for the year

Tax at the applicable rate of 20%
Deductible expenses
Nan-deductible expenses
Effect of temporary differences

Effect of carry forward: taxable losses

1,284,294 100,165

256,859 20,033
{257,445} {200,761}
112,699 95,040
63,593 145,938
99,683 85,688

275,389 145,938

Y471 = mﬁ'ﬁ\o?( ;
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26 Related party transactions

The Bank has a related party refationship with its shareholders, their related entities, directors and key management
personnel. The Bank had transactions with fallowing related parties at mutually agreed terms during the year:

Directors and other key

management personnel Shareholders and its
{and close family members) associated companies
2022 2021 2022 . Zo2t
MNature of transactions ivma e AFN '000 R =
(2} Loans and advances to refated parties
Loans outstanding at the biginaing of the year 7,040 2,678 159,997 172,935
Loans issued during the year - - 176,878 159,997
Loans repayments during the year (7,040) (2,678) (159,997) (172,935)
Exchange gain - - L -
Loans outstanding at the end of the year - - 176,878 1597997
Interest income earned - 3 - 8,674 181,217

Provision for expected credit losses on outstanding balances of loans and advances to related parties amounts to
AFN 176,878 thousand (31 December 2021: AFN 7,705 thousand).

The facitities provided to related'partles carry mark=up of 7% per annum {31 December 2021: 7% per annum)
payable on monthly basis and are secured against mortgage of residential property and personal guarantees of
directors and representative of shareholders of the Bank.

Directors and other key Shareholders and its
management personne! associated companies
{and close family members)

2022 . 2021 2022 7024

Nature of transactions P AFN '000 - R :

(b) Deposits from related parties

Depdsits at the beginning of the year 158,172 56,741 4,839 64,474
Bepaosits received during the year 3,325 275,318 219,324 1,585,446
Depésits repaid during the year {134,606) (187,079) (213,142)  {1,651,968)
Exchange rate difference 22,744 13,192 . 10,274 6,887
Deposits at the end of the year 49,635 158,172, ... .21,295 4,839

[nterest expense on deposits - - T

These represent current account of related parties, which do not cariy interest (31 December 2021: Nil).

Directors and other key

management personnel Shareholders and its

Mature of transactions (and close family members) associated companies

2022 0 Bp3a 2022 2021
SRR AFN 1660 T

{c) Other relatéd party transactions

Fee and commission income = - 59 3,795
Directars' fae 15,465 25,593 - -
Rental expenses - - 30,689 58,523

2022 2021

wmimnimmas AFN IN "G00 =sssaune.

{d} Key Management compensation o _
Salaries and other short-term benefits 80,859 75,930
80,859 75,930

Key Management persennel of the Bank include the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Finance Officer, Chief Qperating .
Officer and: Chief Risk Officer. ﬁ\gf
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27

28

28.1
29

29,1

2022 2021,
emmmmmu—— AFN in 000 -=--=-—---
Cash and cash equivalents
Cashi in hand and at ATM 20,542,055 9,774,654
Balances with DAB (other than minirnum reserve requirement) 1,091,887 8,075,638
Balances with ather banks 4,920,490 18,291,403
Placements (with maturity less than three months) _ 8935765 10,685,551
44,490,201 46,827,246
Earnings per share - Basic and diluted
Profit after taxation (AFN '000) 1,008,505 246,103
Weighted average nimber-of ordinary shares - (hurnber in thousand) 30,000 30,000
Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (AFN) 33.63 8.70
There is no dilutive effect an basic earnings per share of the Bank.
Financial risk management
Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial assets Debt Debt Financial Total
{other than investments at  invéstments liabilities at
invéstments)- At amortized cost  at fairvalue  amortized cost
) amortized cost thréugh OCE
31 December 2022 . L .
PY TR T ——
Financial assets
Cash and balances with
Da Afghanistan Bank 36,754,123 - - - 36,754,123
Balances with other banks: 4,935,205 - - - 4,935,205
Placements - net - 11,326,593 - - 11,-32§,593
Investinents - net - 4,698,648 2,107,340 ‘ 6,805,988
Loans and advances te custoriers - - 872,752
net 872,752 - - o
Other assets = 598,085 L n 598,085
' 42,562,080 16,623,325 2,107,340 - 61,292,745
Financizal liabilities N
Customers' deposits - - - 59,950,045 59,950,045
Lease liabilities - - - 247,634 247,634
Other liabilities N s . . 840,452 840,452
- S - e L0538 181

61,038,131 oo
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Financial assets Pebt Debt Financial Total
{other than investments at  investments liabilities at '
investments)- At amortized cost  at fairvalue  amortized cost
amortized cost through OCI
31 December 2021 . .
AFN 000 -
Financial assets
Cash and balances with
Da Afghanistan Bank 22,457,198 - - - 22,457,198
Balances with other banks 18,315,295 - - - 18,316,295
Placements - net - 10,685,045 - - 10,685,045
Investments - nat - 9,244,183 6,345,755 - 15,589,938
Loans and advances to customers - - 1,819,527
net 1,819,527 - - '
Other assets - 1,326,910 - L - 1,326,910
42,593,020 . 21,256,138 6,345,755 .t ... 70,194,813
Financial liabilities
Customers' deposits - - - 70,315,610 70,315,610
Deposit from banks - - - - -
Lease liabilities - - - 323,255 323,255
Other fiabilities - - . - . 166,941 166,941,
- .- - _ 70,805,806 . 70,805,806

29.2 Financial Risk factors

The Bank’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and
management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking fisk is core to the firandial Business and the operational risks are
an inevitable consequence -of being in business. The Bank's aim is therefore to achiéve an appropriate balance between risk and
return and minimize potential adverse effects on the Bank’s finandal performance.

The Bank's risk management policies are designed to identify and analyze these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and contréls, and
to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of refiable and up to date information systems. The Bank regularly reviews its
risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets, products and emerging best practice,

Risk management is carried out by & Risk Management Department (RMD) under policies approved by the Management Board. RMD
identifies, évaluatés and manages financial risks in close co-cperation with theé Bank’s operating uriits. The Management Board:
provides written principles for averall risk management, as well a5 written policies covefing specific areas, such as foreign exchange

risk, Interest rate #isk, credit fisk and use of non-derivative financial instruménts, The internal audit is responsiblé for the independent
review of risk managernent and control environment. The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and R
other operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest rate and other price risk. ‘4\\)?(
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25.3 Credit Risk

The Bank takes on exposura te credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will cause a financial loss for the Bank by
failing to discharge an obligation. Credit risk is the most important risk for the Bank's business; management therefore
carefully manages its exposure to credit risk. Credit exposures arise principally in fending activities that fead to leans and
advances, balances with banks and receivable from financial institution and placements with other banks. Credit risk also
arises in off-balance sheet finandal instruments, such as Bank's contingencies and .commitments. The credit risk
management and centrol are centralized in credit risk management téam of Bank and reported to the management team
and head of each business unit regularly. Balances with DAB are not exposed to credit risk.

29.4 Credit risk measurement

Definition of default and cure

The Bank considers a financtal instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 {credit-impaired) for ECL caleulations in alf
cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments. As a part of a qualitative assessment
of whether a customer is in default, the Bank also considers & variety of instances that may indicate unlikeliness to pay.
When such events cccur, the Bank carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the customer as
defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL caleulations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.

It is the Banld's policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified oul of Stage 3 when none of
the default criterfa have been present for at least 3 consecutive months. The decision whether to classify an asset as
Stage 2 or Stage 1 once cured depends on the updated credit grade, at the time of the cure, and whether this indicates
there has been a significant Increase in credit risk compared to initial recognition. The bank is observing a prohationary
period of a minimum of 3 instalments {for repayments which are on a quarterly basis or shorter} and 12 months (in
cases wheére instalments aré on a longer frequency than quarterly) after the restructuring, before upgrading from Stage 3
to 2.

Credit ratings and PD estimation process

The exposure at default (EAD) represents the gross carrying amount of the financial instru_ments_ subject to- the
impairment calculation, addressing both the client’s ability to increase its exposure while appreaching default and
potential early repayments too.

The EADs are determined based on the expected payment profile, which variés by product type. For amortizing products
and hullet repayment foans, this is based on the contractual repayments owed by the borrower aver the 12 menths and
lifetime basis, This is also adjusted for any overpayments made by the borrower. For revalving products, the EAD is
predicted by taking current drawn balance and adding a credit conversion factor which allows for the expected
dréwdown of the remaining. limit by the time of default.

To calculate the EAD for a Stage 1 ioan, the Bank assesses the possibleé default events within 12 months for the
calculation of the 12mECL. For Stage 2, Stage 3 and POCI financial assets, the exposure at default is considered for
events over the lifetime of the instruments,

Loss given default

Bank calculates LGD rates and these LGD rates take into account the FAD for historical poal of non-performing leans in
comparison to the amount recovered or realized against such Ipans, In detarming LGDs, the Bank considers all eligible
colfateral provided the collateral can be legally enforcéd. Due to the complexities ifivolved in the Afgharistan regarding
collateral realization and lack of historical experience to demonstrate recoveries through realization of coliatérals, the
Bank restricts the expecteéd recoveries (to be consldered in LGD computations) based on its historical recovery
experiences.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Bank continuously monitors all assets subject to ECLs. In order to determine whether an instrument or a portfolio of
instrumenits is subject to 12mECL or LTECL, the Bank assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit

risk since iritial recegnition. The Bank has estabiished a pelicy to perform an assessment, at the end of éach reperting
period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit tisk has increased slgnificantly since ihitial recognition. Significant
increase in credit risk is measured by comparing the risk of default estimated at origination with the risk of default at
reporting date. The Bank also applies a secondary qualitative methéd for triggering a significant increase in credit risk for

an asset, such as moving a customer/facility to the watch list, of the account becoming forborne, Regardless of the
change In credit grades, if contractual paymants are more than 30 days past due, the credit risk is deemead to have \)7( -
increased stgnificantly since initial recognition. )
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Measuring expected credit lasses - ECL

PD, EAD and LGD are multiplted together and adjusted for the likelihcod of survival {i.e. the exposure has net prepaid or
defaulted in earlier year) on annual basis. This effectively calculates an ECL for each future year, which is then
discounted back to the reporting date and summed. The discount rate used in ECL computation is thé original effective
interest rate or an approximation therecof. '

Forward locking econemic information is alse included in determining the 12 month and fifetime ECL. The bank has
performed historical analysis and identified key economic variables impacting credit risk and ECL for each porifolic. These
economic variahies and théir associated-impact on PR, EAD and LGD vary by financial instrument. Expert judgement hags
aiso been applied in this process. Forecast of these economic variables (the “base econoritic scenario”) are obtained from
external sources on a quarterly basis.

In addition to the base economic scenafio, the management also estimaté other possible scenarios along with scenarios
weighting. The scenarfo weighting are determined by an expert credit judgement. As with any econeric forécasts, the
projections and likelihoods -of the occurrence are subject to a high degree of inherent uncertdinty and therefore the
actual outcomes may be significantly different to those projected. The Bank conslders theése estimates of the possible
outcomes. The bank has used base, upside and downside scenaries for its ECL estimation,

Impairment under loca) regiulations

(i) Over due balances on loans to customers are segmented nto four categores as described in nate 4.4(b). The
percentage of provision créated on such over due balances are as per guidelings issued by DAB and reflects the range of
default probabilities definéd for each categary. This means that, in principle, expostires migrate between classes as the
assessment of thelr probability of default changes.

{i7) Exposure at default is based on the amounts; the Bank expects ta be owed at the time of default. For example,. for a
loan this is the face value, For a commitrment, the Bank includes any amount already drawn plus the further amouny that
may have been drawn by the time of default, should it occur.

(iif) Loss given defauit or loss severity represents the Bank's expectation of the extent of loss on a claim should defauit
occur, It is expressed as percentage foss per unit of exposure and typically varles by fype of counterparty, type and
seniority of claim and availability ef collateral or other credit mitigation.

(b) Other than loans and advances

Other than loans and advances includes balances with ether banks and financial institutions and placements with ather
banks, investments in bonds and held with DAB and other assets. Judgments and instructions from the Bank's treasury
are being used by the Bank's management in placing funds with other Banks and are viewed as a way te gain better
credit quality mapping and maintain a readily available source to meet the funding requirements at the same time when
reguired.

Further, the Bank has banking relationships. with financial institutions which have good international reputation and
strong finangial standing and. therefore, probability of default by such financial institutions is low.

29.5 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Bank manages, limits and controls concentrations of credit risk wherever they are identified — in particular, to
individua! counterparties and groups, industries dnd countries.

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undértakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to
one borrower, or graups of borrowers, and to geodraphical and industry segments. Such risks are monitored on a
revalving basis and subject to an annual ar more frequent review, when considered necessary. Limits on the lével of
credit risk by product and industry sector are approved quarterly by the Management Board.

The exposure to any ene barrower is furthér restricted by sub-iimits covering on- and off-balance sheet exposures. Actual
exposures against limits are moritored -daily.

Exposure to credit risk is alse managed through analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet
interest and capital repayment obligations at the time of lpan appraisat for initial and subsequent loans. “}\
Fa

Some other specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below. /
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29.6

(a) Collateral

The Bank employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most traditional of these is the taking of
security for funds advandes, which is commaon practice. The Bank implements quigdelines on the acceptahility of specific
classes of coltateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal coflateral types for loans and advances are:

+ Martgages aver residential properties
= Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory and accounts receivable

In addition, in order to minimize the credit loss, the Bank will seek additicnal coltateral from the counterparty as soon as
impairment indicators are noticed for the relevant individuat loans and advances.

(b} Credit-retated commitments

The primary purpose of these instruiments is 6 ensure that funds are available to a customer as required. Guaranteas
and standhy letters of credit carry the same eredit risk as loans. Pecumentary and commercial letters of credit - which
are written undertakings by the Bank on behalf of a customer authorizing a third party to-draw drafts on the Bank up to a
stipulated amount under $pecific terms and conditions - are collateralized by the underlying. shipments of goods to which
thev relate and therefore carry less risk than a diréct loan.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused gortions of authorizations to extend credit in the form of loans,

guarantees or letters -of credit. With respect to credit rigk on commitments to extend credit, the Bank s patentially
exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused commitments. However, the fikely amount of loss is less than the
total unused commitmerits, as most commitments te extend credit; are contingent upon customers maintalning specific
credit standards, The Bank monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because longer-term commitments
generally have a greater degree of credit risk than shorter-term commitments.

Analysis of maximum exposure to credit risk and collateral and other credit enhancements

__Maximum exposure

2022 2021
AFN '000 AFN "000
Credit risk exposures relating to on-balance sheet items are as follows:
Balances with other banks 4,935,205 18,316,295
Placements - net 11,326,593 10,685,045
Investiments - net (excluding capital notes with DAB) 6,8(_]5,_988 15,589,938
Loans and advances to customers - net 872,752 1,819,527
Other assets 598,085 1,326,910
24,538,622 47,737,715
Credit risk exposures relating to off-balance sheet items are as foliows: _
Guarantees 2,666,853 8,354,500
Undrawn loan and overdraft facilities 338,335 942,955
Commercial letters of credit 44,605 933,918
3,049,793 9,851,374

The above table represents credit risk exposure to the Bank at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 taking ac_count
of any collateral heid or othier enhancements attached. For op-balance-sheet assets the exposure set out above is based
an net carrying amounts as reported in the statement of financial nosition,

The percentage of the maximum credit exposure in balances with other banks, placements, investiments ahd loans and
advances are as follows {in percentage of the total credit exposure):
31 December 31 December

... 2022 2021
Batances with other banks 201 1% _3’8.37"%
Placements - net 46.16% 22.38%
Investments - net {excluding capital notes with DAB) 27.74% 32.66%
Loans and advances to customers - net 3.56% 3.81%
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29.7

208

Credit quality of financial assets

The credit qualities of Bank's financial assets have been assessed below by the reference to external credit
ratings of counter parties-determined by various international credit rating agencies. The counterparties for which
external credit ratings weie not avaitable, and have been. assessed by reference to internal credit ratings
determined based on their historical information for any defaults in meeting obligations.

Credit
Credit rating 2022 2021
Balances with other banks/ rating AGENCY .. -mrmemeae AFN in "00D ---rrwe-—-
Counter parties with external crédit ratings: o o
Commerzbank Germany Al Maody's 1,045,600 1,276,755
Crown agents BB Fitch ' 2,930,375 13,482,891
Emirates NBD A3 Moady's 30,366 712,998
State commercial bank of Furkmenistan Baai Moody's 258,392 335,474
Julius Baer International ha2 Moody's 142;494 1,859,257
Bank Centre Credit Caal Moady's 247,497 49,999
Others 280,479 598,920
Credit
Placements Credit rating 2022 2021
rating, agency . reeweseo-= AFN N 000 som-mneeee
Doha bank Baal Moady's 713,680 -
Commercial Bank International A3 Maody's - 1,037,300
Commercial Bank of Pubai P5C A- Moody's - 1,037,300
Emirates NBD A3 Moody's 7,897,414 4,399,791
National Bank of Fujairah Baai Moody's - -
Citibank A3 Moody's 2,733,340 3,173,855
2022 2021
---------- AFN in '000 —~vn-cam
Investments - net 6,863,553 15.615,723

Investments held carries varfous credit rating including AAA, Aa2, Aa3, Al, A2, A3, Baal, Baa2, Baa3, Bal, Ba2,
B3, B1, B2 and B3. Thess investments are managed by the bank through Emirates NBD, Julius Baer and Credit
Suisse under investment criteria defined by the Bank. The credit quality and the maxiraum exposure to credit rigk
for under expected credit losses model is based on the Bank's ciedit rating grades and year-end stage
classificatjon as at 31 Decermber 2022 & 2021:

2022 2021

Loans and advances to.customers- net .. B72,752 1,819,527,

The credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk for IFRS & stage eategories based on the Bank's
credit rating grades and year-end stage dassification as at 31 Decembér 2022 and 31 December 2021 are
distlosed in note 9:5.1 to the financial statemernits,

2022 2021
mrrm— AFN in '000 ---<r-nmm-
Other assets _
Counter parties ... 598,085 1,326,910
Loans and advances - net _
2022 2021
Note  ~ereamnas AFN in '000 <:-:-r---
Loans and advances are summarized as follows:
Neither past due nor impalréd 845,743 1,933,014
Past due but not Impaired 402,098 __15,389
Non-performing- Stage 3 8723 1097004
Gross outstanding " 1,256,564 2,985,408
Less: Allowance for impairment S .
Géneral provision 3.4 T (333,148)] (155,595)
Provision héld for-expected credil losses - note (50,6673} . (1,010,28%)

"~ (383,815) (1,165,880)

872,749 1,819,528 s\‘)?l )
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(a) Loans and advances neither past due nor impaired

The credit quality of the portiolio of loans and advances that were neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to the

IFRS 9,
Commercial loans SME loans Consumer
_ e i loans _
Overdraft _ Teérm loans __Term Ioans Term loans _ Total
_ AFN 000 AFN 000 AFN'000 AFN 000 AFN '000
31 December 2022
Regular loans 572,026 244,906 13,257 17,653 1,247.842
31 December 2021
Regular loans 1,319,416 548,020 40,071 25,507 1,933,014
(b} Loans and advances past
due but not impaired
31 December 2022
Past due up to 30 days - - 6,669 - 6,669
Fair value of collatera! - - 2,906 - 2,906
31 December 2021
Past due up to 30 days - - 13,786 1,603 15,389
Fair value of collateral - - 9,926 - 9,926

WUpon initial recognition of loans and advances, the fair value of collateral is based on valuation techniques commonly used for the
corresponding assets, In subsequent periods, the fair value is updated by reference to market price ar indexes of similar assets.

(¢) Loans and advances individuatly impaired

The individually impaired Ioans and advances to customers before taking into consideration the cash flows from collateral held is AFN

0 thousands (31 December 2021; AFN 6,641 thousands).

Commeércial loans SME loans Consumer
. loans ...
Overdraft ~~ Terin loans Termloans_ . Term loans Total
AFN 000 AFN '600 " AFN '000 "~ AFN'000 AFN ‘000
31 Dacember 2022
Non-performing - Stage 3 - - ..8,723 - 8,723
Falr value of collateral T - R 150,874 = 150,874
31 December 2021,
Non-perfarming - Stage 3 911,492 e - 123,037 2,474 1,037,004
Fair value of collateral 276,245 7 - T 244,445 - 0 520,690

(¢} Loans and advances restructured / reschedufed

Restructuring activities include extended payment arrangements and deferral of payments. Restructuring policies and practices are
based on indicators or criteria which, in the judgment of management, indicate that payment will most likely centinue. These policies
are kept under continuous review. Renegotiated loans that would otherwise be past due or impaired at 31 December 2022 were AFN

7,461 thousands (31 December 2021: AFN 0 thousands).

31 December 2022

31 Pecember 2021

TLoan amount
at the time of

Loan amount

at the time of

rescheduling
AFN '000

At year-end
AFN 000

rescheduting At year-end
AFN000 AEN “000
Commercial loans and advances:
Term loans 7,630 . 7461
Total -~ 7,630 _ 7,461

=
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29.9 Concentration of risk of financial assets with credit risk axposure
(a) Geographical sectors

The following table breaks down the Bank's main credit exposure at their carying amounts, as categotized by geographical region as of 31 Decembar 2021, For this
table, the Bank has allocated exposures te regions based on the country of domicile of our counterparties, '

. OFf balance.
2022 _ . On balance sheat: . . . . sheet:
2 *—oansand :
_ advances to Contingencles
Balances with customers - and
other hanks Placements Investments net Other assets  comunitments Total
AFN ‘000 AFN 'o00 AFN"000 AEN '000 AFNN ‘000 AFN000 AFN '000
Afahanlstan - - - ‘872,752 504,265 3,049,793 4,526,810
tebanon - - - . 251,378 - 251,378
Sinaapore 54,561 - - B - - 59,561
Germany 1,060,315 - - - n - 1,060,315
UAE 30,366 6,762,612 1,578,000 - - - 8,370,978
UsA - 2,707:603 . - - - 2,707,603
UK 2,930,375 1,767,400 2 - - . 4,697,775
Switzerland 142,494 - - - - - ‘142,494
Turkey 33,034 - - - - - ‘33,034
Russia - - 518,248 . - - 518,248
Uzbekistan 171,975 - - - - - 171,975
Kazakhstan 247,497 - - - - - 247,497
Turkmeniskan 258,302 - - - - - 258,392
India 1,194 - - - " - 1,154
Korea - - 36,341 - - - 36,341
Htaly - . 625,989 . - - 625,989
Mexico - - 763,532 - - - 763,532
Portugat - - 53,553 = - - 53,553
Poland - - - - - - -
Hungary - - - - - - -
Slevak Republic - - - - - - -
‘Malaysla - - 132,783 - - - 132,783
Belgium - - 983,773 - - - 983,773
Ciman u - 44,266 . - - 44,266
Saurli Arabia - - 263,640 - - - 263,640
Oatar - - 473,597 “ - - 473,597
Sweden - - “ - - - -
Slovenla - - - - - - -
Indonesia - - 761,789 - - - 761,789
China - - 445,942 - - - 445,942
Wamibia - - - - - - -
South Afiica - . - - - . -
Others o - - 124,535 - 115,771 - .. .240:306
4,935,205 1‘1',23?-5"515 6805988 = 872,752 971,415 3,049,793 2‘1!872358
(b} Industry sectors
Off balarice
2022 On balance sheet: ._sheet:
- - Toans and . - =
advances to Contingencies
Balances with customers - and
other banks Placements Investments net Other asséts  contmitments Total
AFN "000 AFN '000 AFN '0D0 AFN '000 AFN "000- AFNM 000 AFN 'DDD
Government § Public sectar - - 6,805,988 - 43,212 - 6,849,200
Manufacturing - - - 191,539 - - 191,539
Agricoiture - - - I - - T
CanstrucHon - - . 170,172 - - 170,172
Power - - - - - 1,265,827 1,265,827
Telecormmunitation - - u - - . -
Banks and financial
instltutions 4,935,205 11,237,615 - - 251,378 - 16,424,199
Traders - - - - - 1,445,631 1,445,63¢
Fuel suppliers " - - 491,541 - - 491,541
Others - - I 19,500 676,824 - 696,329
. 4935205 11,237 615 6805088 T 872.752 __ 971,415 2,711,458 27,533,433 .

oY
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2021

On balance sheet: . Off balance sheet:
_ T Loans and D
Investments -  advances to Comtingencles
Balances with  Placements -  net (exchuding  customers - and
other banks nat capl';al notes) het Other assets  cammiitments Total
AFN 'ODO AFHN '000 AFN '000 AFM "ODOD AFN '000 AFN ‘000 AFN 'ODD0
Afghanistan N - 1,819,527 353,306 9,851,374 12,024,206
Lebanan - - - - 1,074,826 + 1,074,826
Singapore 26,547 - - - - - 26,547
Gearmany 1,133,924 - - - - - 1,133,924
UAE 712,958 10,685,545 1,814,535 - - 13,213,079
usa - - - - - - -
UK 13,628,722 - - - - B 13,625,722
Switzertand 1,859,257 - - - - - 1,859,257
Turkey 181,572 - - - - - 181,572
Russia 384,859 - 919,186 - - ~ 1,304,045
Uzbekistan 5,587 - - - 5,587
Kazakhstan 49,999 - - - 49,994
Turkmenistan 335,474 - - - + - 335474
india 356 - - - - - 356
Korea - - 345,771 - - - 345,771
Italy - - 725,221 - - - 735,221
Mexico - 908,936 - B - 908,936
Porfugal - - 63,667 - 63,667
Poland - - 46,696 - - - 46,696
Hungary T 768,561 - - - 768,561
Slovak Repubiic B - 1,078,538 - 1,078,988
Malaysia - - 191,476 - - - 191,476
Belgium - 1,147,651 - - - 1,147,651
Oman - - 115,732 - - - 115,732
Saucfi Arabiz - B 782,339 - - - 782,339
Gatar - - 1,311,625 - - 1,311,625
Sweaden - - - - - -
Slovenia - - 445,106 - - - 445,106
indonesia - - 1,126,435 - - 1,126,435
China - - - - - -
MNaniibla = 51,486 - - - 51,486
South Africa B - - - - - -
Others - . . - 3,772,301 - 207,087 . - 3,979,288,
18,316,294 10,685 546 . 15,815,722 _ _1 @19;52? 1,635,2}9 . 9,851 374 | S?,Q?ES‘GB;
2021 .0On balance sheet:. Off balance sheet:
- sl oansand
advances to Contingencies
Balances with customers - and
other baitks Placements Investments net Bther assets  commitments Tatal
AFN ‘000 AFN "0DD AFNGOO AFEN '000 AFN '000 AFN ‘DOO AEN '000
Govemment / Public
seckor - 15,615,722 - 247,651 15,863,373
Manufactising - - - - - -
Agriculture - - - - - - -
Construction - - - - - -
Power - - - - -
Telecommunication - - - - - - M
Banks and flnancial )
institutlons 18,316,294 10,685,546 - - 1,074,826 36,076,666
Traders - - - - - -
Fuel suppliers - - - * N - N
Cthers - - - - 312,74 . 8354500 8,667,242
18,316,294 . 10,685,546 15615722 - 1,635,219 8,354,500

54,607,281 Q)f‘
‘(\
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33a

33.2

Llgpsietity risk

E.iguidity risk is the risk that thi Bank |s unable to meet its fpayment obligatlons associaled with it finangal liabilities when they fall due and to repface funds when they are
withdrawn. The consequence may-be the failure to meet gbligations to repay depositors and fulfill commitients to lend. ' '

Linuidity risk management pracess
The Bank’s fiquldity management procass, includes:

- Day-to-day f_unrjing. managed by monltering Future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met. This Includes replenishment of funds as they malture or are
borrowed by custamers; '

- Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can =aslly be liquidated as. prolaction agalnst any unforeseen Interruption to cash liow:
- Monltoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal ang regulatory requirements; angd
- Managing the concentration and profile of detit maturities,

Monitoring and reporiing take the form of cash flow measuremant and projections for the next day, week and month respettively, as these are key periods for liquidity
management. The starting point for those projections is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the finapcial iabilities and the éxpected collection date of the financial
assets.

Hank Treasury also monitors unmatched medivm-term assets, the leviel and type of undrawn lending commitments, the usage of overdraft facllities and the impact of
contingent liabilities such as standby letters of credit and guarantees, '

Funding appraach
Sources of kquidity are regularly reviewad by the Asset Liability Commitiea (ALCO) to maintain a wide diversification by currency, geography, grovider, product and term.

Liquldity ratios
Advances to depasit ratlas

2022 2021
Year-end 1.46% 2.59%
Maximim 2:.69% B, 74%
Minimum 1.46% 4.50%
Average 2.10% 5.449%

Nan-derivative financial liablliies and assets held for managing

The table balow presents the cash flows payable by the Bank under non-derivative financial liabilitles and assets held to manage liguldity risk by remaining contractuat
maturities at the date of the statement of financlal position. The amounts disclosad In the- table are the contractual undlscounted cash flows, whereas the Bank manages the
inherant liquidity risk based on-expected undlscounted cash inflows.

Up to 1 monkh Lto3 It 12 1to5vyears Over5years Tatal
months months

AFN'000 . _ AEN'000. .. _ AFK 000 AEN '000. . AFN ‘DD AFN ‘000
As at 21 Deceniber 2022 - L o i Sk
Liabilities
Customers' deposits 59,950,045 - - - - 59,950,045
Lease liabilities. - - - - 247,634 247,634
Other llgbilities . 583,237 .. 231,482 . - . - e 814,719
Total financial liabilitias {contractusl fivaturity dates) 60,533,202 231,482 c . - ..247,634 61,013,398
Total-financial assets {contractual maturlty dates) ...10,229, 484 4,845,532 4,165,882 4,007,010 . _ 1,696,657 24044565
As at 31 December 2021,
Liabilities
Customers' depasits 70,359,122 - 11,036 . - 70,370,158
|ease {labillties 12,095 120,958 24,192 50,479 105,530 323,2_55
Qther fiabilities .. 11495 . 11,442 - R, et 52,937 .
Tatak financial lizbilities (contractual maturity dates) 70,382,143 .. 162,400 .. ... 35228 60479, 105530 70,746,350
Total financial assets {cantractual maturity dates) 92,276,733 ‘855,493 B384,675 . 0494228 2,819,219, . 113,824349

Assels available to meet 8B of the liabillties and to cover outstanding i0ans commitment inclade cash and baiances with Da &fghanistan Bank, balances with other banks and
receivable from financial institutions, placemints, loans and advances to custemers and security deposits and other recelvables.

Gff-balance sheet items

The dates of the copliactual amaunts of the Bank's off-balance shieet financlal instruments that commilt it t extend credit to-customers and other facilities are summarizad
Ie the: table balaw:

Hot later than  1to 5 years Owvar 5 years Total
1 year

AEN '000 APt 000 .. AFN '000 . AFN.'000
As at 31 December 2022 : o )
Guarantess 2,277,824 389,029 - 2,666,853
Undrawn toans and overdiaft facilitios 338,335 - - 338,335
Commergial fetters of credlt = 44,605 ) 44,605
Total . 2;516!159 433,634 = . .'24049,793
As at 31 December 2021
Guarantees 5,575,005 2,774,495 - 8,354,500
Undrawn loans and-overdraft facilities 892,508 50,447 - 942,955
Commercial tetiers of credit 35,268 518,650 - .. . 553018
Tokal 6,502,782 3,348,592 @ O 9,851,374

)
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Fair value of financial assets and financial Habilities
Liquidity risk s the risk that the Bank is unabie to meet its payment obligations associated with its financial fiabllities when they fall due and to

replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may be the failure to meet abligations to repay depositors and fulfill commitments
to lend, ' .

(a} Financial instruments measured at fair value using a valuation technique

Fhe table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by vatuation method. The various fair valug levels have been defined as
follows:

Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices Included within Levet 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, sither directly (l.e., as pricas) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset of liabiility that are not based on observiible market data {unobservable inputs).

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000
Investrments in bonds - Fair value through OCI
As at: 31 Decemiber 2022 - ... 2;107,340 . =z
As at 31 December 2021 i T .. 6345755

Valuation technique and key inputs used for investments in bonds were quoted market bid price in active market.

There were ne transfers made among various levels of fair value hierarchy during the year.
(b} Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The table below summarizes the carrying amounts and falr values of those financial assets and Habilities which are presented on the Bank's
statement of financial position at-value other than falr value.

Carrying. Value ) . Fair Value .
2022 L2021 2022 2021

AFR 00D Aot : —
Financial assets
Cash and balances with Da Afghanistan Bank 36,754,123 22,457,198 36,754,123 22,457,198
Balances with other banks 4,935,205 18,316,295 4,935,205 18,316,295
Placements - net 11,326,593 10,685,045 11,326,593 10,685,045
Investmeants - net 4,698,648 9,244,184 4,698,648 9,244,184
Loans and advances 1o customers - net B72,752 1,819,527 872,752 1,819,527
Seeurity deposits and other receivablas - net 598,085 841,036 598,085 841,036
Financial Habilities
Customers’ deposits 59,950,045 70,315,610 59,950,045 70,315,610
Deposits from bank - - - -
Other liabilities 583,237 11,495 583,237 11,495
QFff-balance sheet financial instruments
Bank's guarantees 2,666,853 8,354,500 2,666,853 8,354,500
Bank's commitments 382,940 1,496,873 382,940 1,456,873

The carrying values of thesé financial assets and liabllities approximates thelr fair values as at the date of stateiment of financial position.

(1) Investments:

These include investraent bonds classified as held-to-rmaturity which are measured at amortised cost, The fair valug of these investments is
equal to the carrylng amount, .

{ii) Loans and advances, other assets and other financial liahilities

Fair value of loans and advances, security deposits and othier recelvables and all the financial liabilities cannat be calculated with sufficient
reliability dug to absence of current and active market for such assets and reliabile data regarding market rates for similar instruments, so its
carrying .amaunt 15 its fair valug. The provision for loans and advances has been cilaulated In accordance with the Bank's policy and regulations
issued by DAB.

(iii) Off-balance sheet financial instruments

The fair value of the off-balance sheet financial instruments is equal to the carrylng amounts,
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Capital Management

The Bank's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the 'equity’ on the face of
balance sheets, are:

{i) to comply with the capital requirements set by the DAB;
(i) to safeguard the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to be self-sustainable;
and

(ift) to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business,
Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored regularly by the Bank's management. DAB

requires each bank to maintain its Tier 1 Capital ratio and Regulatory Capital ratio to be at least 6 % and 12 %
respectively, The Bank is maintaining this ratio well above the required level.

The table below summarizes the composition of the regulatory capital and ratio of the Bank:

2022 2021
---------- AFN ip '000 -=--~~«---
Tier 1 {Core} Capital:
Total equity capital 3,771,302 3,578,536
Less:
Intangible assets {457,329) (291,697}
Net deferred tax assets (13,802} {267,333}
Revaluation reserve on debt instruments at OCI 114,303 26,871
Profit for the year (1,008,905) (246,103)
2,405,569 2,800,274
Tier 2 (Supplementary) Capital:
General reserves as per DAB's regulation, but restricted
to 1.25% of total risk-weighted exposure 170,342 170,251
Prafit for the year 1,008,905 246,103
Revaluation reserve on bonds (45%) = "
1,179,248 416,354
Tier 2 (Supplementary) Capital "
(restricted 100% of Tier 1 (Core) Capital) 1,179,248 416,354
3,584,817 3,216,628
Risk-weight categories
0% risk weight:
Cash in Afghani and fully-convertible foreign currencies 29,542,060 8,774,654
Direct claims on DAB 7,212,063 12,682,544
Others 1,020,563 2,845,474
Total 37,774,686 25,302,673
0% risk-weight total (above total x 0%) - -
20% risk weight:
Balances with other banks 16,279,639 30,076,667
Cthers 789,728 323,688
20% risk-weight total (above total x 20%) 3,413,873 6,080,073
50% risk weight:
Cthers 679,778 1,424,769
50% risk-weight total (above total x 50%) 339,889 712,385
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36

100% risk weight:

All other assets

Less: intangible assets

Less: Deferred tax assets

All other assets - pet

100% risk-weight total (above total x 100%)

Credit conversion factor

0% risk weight:

Undrawn lean and overdraft facilities

Guarantess

0% credit conversion factor total (risk-weighted total x (%)
0% risk-weight total (above total x 0%)

20% risk weight:

Commerdial lettars of credit

Guarantees

20% credit conversion factor total (risk-weighted total x 20%)
20% credit conversion factor total (risk-weaighted total x 20%)

100% risk weight:

Guarantees

100% credit conversion factor total (risk-weighted total x 100%)
100% risk-weight total (above total x 100%!)

Total risk-weighted assets
Tier 1 Capital Ratio
{Tier 1 capital as % of totaf risk-

weighted assets)

Regulatory Capital Ratio
(Regulatory capital as % of total risk-weighted assets)

Islamic banking

The Bank started Islamic banking operation in November 2015 with foliowing Islamic deposit products.

Qardul Hasana Current Account

9,866,546 17,523,944
{457,329) (291,697)
_(13,802) {267,333)
9,395,415 16,964,915
9,395,415 16,964,915
338,335 942,955
284,726 415,522
44,605 553,018
2,382,128 7,938,978
8,921 110,784
478,210 1,609,953
13,627,387 25,367,326
17.65% 11.04%
12.68%

26.31%

This account is profit-free account specifically designed to meet the requirements of the Bank’s customers. Account
holders wilt have easy access to account at any time to meet their personat or business expenses.

Mudarabah Savings Account

This account is designed spécifically to meet the requirements of custemers who authorize the Bank to invest their cash
deposits, Customers can deposit or withdraw money at any time they wish, and can earn profits on their savings.

Mudarabah Term Investment Deposit

These funds are actepted with different thvestment periods. The Bank manages and invests the funds aiming at

realizing the best profit fof the mutual interest of the parties.
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Below are the figures relating to Istamic banking as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021
AFN "000 AFN '000

ASSETS
Cash and balances with- Da Afghanistan Bank 776,607 909,689
Investments in sukuk sectirities 624,470 727,961
Loans and advances to éustomers 14,844 28,370
Operating fixed assets 9 1,307
Other assets ... 3,832 5,206
Total assets 1,419,762 1,672,532
LIABILITIES
Deposit - current 415,227 193,892
Deposit - saving 1,018,637 1,482,041
Deposit - term deposit - 11,036
Other liabilities _ 4,813 3,695

1,438,677 1,690,664
EQUITY _
Share Capital 5,809 5,809
Accumudated losses reserve (23,_9__4__-:_[) _ (23,203)
Total equity (18,132) (17,394)
Total liabilities and equity 1,420,545 '1,673,_2_’70_
Total profit income 10,737 6,961
Total profit expense —...(3,319) . {(2,255)
Net Profit Income 7,418 4,706
Other non profit income 9,765 11,253
Other nen profit expense (14,211) (15,189)
Net non profit expense {4,446) (3,936}
Income / (loss) from dealing in foreign currencies — 934 (2,078)
TOTAL INGOME 3,956 (1,308)
Net provision / (reversal). for expected credit losses . (4739) . 570,
NET LOSS FOR THE YEAR . (783) _(738)

e
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37 General

37.1 Corresponding figures have been reclassified / re-arranged wherever necessary to facilitate comparison in the
presentation in the current year. However, there aré no material reclassification / re-arrangement to report.

37.2 The figures in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest in thousands in AFN.

38 Date of authorization for issue

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Supervisors of the Bank o

oy '

Chairman Chief Financial Officer




